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1                             Monday Afternoon Session,

2                             September 11, 2017.

3                         - - -

4             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  It appears we

5 have all of our Board members present, so we'll call

6 this meeting to order and we'll take attendance.

7             Kim Marinello.

8             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Here.

9             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Mike Sexton.

10             MEMBER SEXTON:  Here.

11             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Doug Preisse.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Here.

13             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Brad Sinnott.

14             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Here.

15             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  We have a

16 majority present.

17             The first order of business is to approve

18 the minutes.  I think those were sent to all the

19 Board members.  If you have any additions, deletions,

20 or corrections, we'd entertain that now.  If not,

21 we'll take a motion to approve the minutes.

22             MEMBER MARINELLO:  I move that the Board

23 approve the minutes of the August 21st, 2017 meeting

24 of the Franklin County Board of Elections as

25 submitted.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Second.

2             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All those in

3 favor, signify by saying aye.

4             (Thereupon, all members voted

5 affirmatively.)

6             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All opposed, same

7 sign.

8             (No response.)

9             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Motion carries.

10             The first order of business is a petition

11 certification due to an unnoticed voter registration

12 on file at the Franklin County Board of Elections,

13 and I'm going to let Jeff Mackey describe that

14 situation.

15             MR. MACKEY:  Candidate Amber Clark for

16 the Hamilton Local School District Board of Education

17 was originally, on the 21st of August, not certified

18 and not recommended for certification because she had

19 only 24 of the 24 valid signatures required.  But we

20 found later that one of the signatories had actually

21 filed a valid update to her registration with the

22 Bureau of Motor Vehicles prior to the petition being

23 filed.  And just due to a time lag there between them

24 and us, it hadn't been entered into our system yet,

25 so that has been corrected, and it is the staff's
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1 opinion that she now has 25 valid signatures and that

2 she should be certified to the General Election

3 ballot.

4             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  This office had

5 coordinated also with the Secretary of State's legal

6 counsel, as well, and they thought that the decision

7 to move forward with this to rectify the circumstance

8 was the appropriate direction on this -- on this

9 particular petition.

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Thank you.

11             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Makes sense to me.

12             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Uh-huh.

13             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.  Then I move that

14 the Board certify to the November 7th, 2017 General

15 Election ballot Amber Clark, and that her petitions

16 be deemed timely filed and found to be valid and

17 sufficient.

18             MEMBER SEXTON:  Second.

19             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All those in

20 favor, signify by saying aye.

21             (Thereupon, all members voted

22 affirmatively.)

23             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All opposed, same

24 sign.

25             (No response.)
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Motion carries.

2 Amber Clark will be on the November 7th, 2017 ballot.

3             We have a couple folks here that are

4 seeking petition certification reconsideration for

5 the November 7th General Election.  And I presume --

6 it's David Donofrio and Lee Schreiner, and I presume

7 you'll want to testify at some point.  If that's the

8 case, anybody that's going to testify, if you could

9 please stand up and raise your right hand and our

10 court reporter will swear you in.

11             (Witnesses sworn.)

12             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  I think we're

13 going to start off with Lee Schreiner if that's okay.

14 And I would just ask Jeff --

15             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Let's review for a

16 minute, if that's all right.

17             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  I was going to

18 have Jeff just basically give an overview of --

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Of where we're coming

20 from.

21             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Yes.

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Then also if we have

23 any opinions of how we're going to proceed here.

24             MR. MACKEY:  So we originally found

25 Mr. Schreiner's petition insufficient because we did
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1 not find enough valid signatures.  He ended up with a

2 total of 290 valid signatures instead of 300 which

3 were required.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  How many -- how many

5 spots on the petitions were disqualified?

6             MR. MACKEY:  We found he submitted 408

7 signatures total on 24 part-petitions.  So we found

8 290 valid and 118 invalid.

9             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Do you have a breakdown

10 of why the 118 were found invalid?

11             MR. MACKEY:  I do.

12             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I thought you would.

13             MR. MACKEY:  The largest number of them

14 was for individuals not being registered at that

15 address was 61.  Illegible, 8 that we couldn't make

16 out enough of any of the signature to credit them.

17 2 with no address.  3 not genuine.

18             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Hold on, hold on.

19             MR. MACKEY:  I'm sorry.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What does "not

21 genuine" mean?

22             MR. MACKEY:  It means the signature on

23 the petition didn't look like the signature we have

24 on file enough.

25             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  You said there were 3.
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1             MR. MACKEY:  3.  And then we have a

2 separate category there to separate the not-genuine

3 signatures which could indicate fraud happening; we

4 call them "printed signatures."  28 printed

5 signatures.  And then 11 out of district.

6             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.  So in --

7             MEMBER SEXTON:  So 61 didn't provide any

8 address?

9             MR. MACKEY:  That was just they were

10 registered at a different address than they had

11 indicated.

12             MEMBER SEXTON:  Different address.  And

13 11 were registered outside of the district.

14             MR. MACKEY:  Out of the district, yeah.

15             MEMBER SINNOTT:  So in the case of the

16 signature we just effectively accepted in Ms. Clark's

17 scenario, that would have -- that sort of situation

18 we would call a "not registered"?

19             MR. MACKEY:  At address.  The "NRA," yup.

20             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.

21             MR. MACKEY:  I believe most of what

22 you're going to be presented with in a little bit is

23 affidavits of individuals who we coded as "printed

24 signatures" indicating that they intended that to be

25 their signature.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is "printed signature"

2 a Franklin County Board of Elections term?

3             MR. MACKEY:  It is.  On a statewide

4 petition the Secretary of State does not separate

5 those two categories; they just say "not genuine."

6 So it would have been a not-genuine signature because

7 it didn't match the one we had on file.  We have

8 broken that out just to help us find petitions that

9 are leaning more towards fraud versus signer error.

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  And you're describing

11 the Donofrio?

12             MR. MACKEY:  This is the Schreiner.

13             MEMBER SINNOTT:  The Schreiner petition,

14 okay.  And you've had a chance, Jeff, to review the

15 material that Mr. Schreiner has submitted.  How many

16 affidavits are there that speak to the printed

17 signatures scenario?

18             MR. MACKEY:  That I don't know.  Did you

19 count all those?

20             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  But they do have --

21             MR. MACKEY:  My impression was most of

22 them, but --

23             MR. COLOMBO:  It's 20.

24             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  20 signatures.  20

25 affidavits they're presenting today.
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1             MR. MACKEY:  20 affidavits.  And they're

2 all dealing with the printed signature category?

3             MR. COLOMBO:  20 deal with the printed,

4 non-genuine, and there's 2 additional registration

5 issues.

6             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Mr. Colombo, if you

7 would identify yourself for the court reporter,

8 please.

9             MR. COLOMBO:  Yes.  I'm Corey Colombo

10 from McTigue & Colombo, and I represent Lee

11 Schreiner.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Will you restate that,

13 Corey, what did you just say?  Not your name and

14 where you are, but what was the statement you made?

15             MR. COLOMBO:  Yeah.  The statement I made

16 was attached to the Request for Reconsideration there

17 were 22 affidavits provided to the Board.  20 of them

18 dealt with either printed or non-genuine categories.

19 And then 2 of the affidavits dealt with people who

20 had changed their registration at the BMV but their

21 signatures were listed under the old address in the

22 Board of Election records.

23             MR. MACKEY:  In this case, versus the

24 Amber Clark case, we do not have those.  They never

25 were transmitted to us.  So I don't know if that
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1 actually happened, or if they just updated their

2 driver's license address and didn't actually update

3 their voter registration, thought that they were

4 updating their voter registration.

5             MR. COLOMBO:  Right.

6             MR. MACKEY:  The BMV lost it.  I don't

7 know.

8             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  And I did ask our

9 staff to reach out to the Bureau of Motor Vehicles

10 with regard to the two affidavits of individuals

11 stating that they had, in fact, updated their voter

12 registration.  The BMV had indicated in a response

13 that they're looking at their transactions and both

14 of them say no to the voter.  Nothing that they see

15 in the transactions indicated that either person

16 requested an update to their voter registration

17 status.

18             MEMBER SINNOTT:  It seems then as though

19 if we were to count the 20 printed signatures, then

20 the candidate would qualify, Mr. Schreiner would

21 qualify with a 10 signature surplus.

22             MR. MACKEY:  I agree.

23             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I like that.  Brad has

24 a suggestion and it was so well articulated in my ear

25 that I'll ask him to say that again so everybody can
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1 hear it.

2             MEMBER SINNOTT:  With the consent of the

3 Chair, I've been invited to ask Counsel to address

4 very briefly the Request for Reconsideration.

5             MR. COLOMBO:  Okay.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Why don't you come

7 over here.

8             MR. COLOMBO:  Okay.  Thank you.

9             Thank you members of the Board.  Again,

10 my name is Corey Colombo.  I'm with the law firm

11 McTigue & Colombo, and Mr. Schreiner is our client.

12             If I could, I'd like to make a

13 five-minute I guess I'd call it an opening statement,

14 and then my only witness today will be Lee Schreiner,

15 and I plan to ask him just a handful of questions,

16 probably five minutes worth, if that'd be okay with

17 the Board.

18             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yeah.  If your opening

19 statement is, you know, helping us understand where

20 you're coming from here in detail.

21             MR. COLOMBO:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's

22 what I'll try to do.

23             So Mr. Schreiner, as you know, filed a

24 Request for Reconsideration, and we really appreciate

25 the Board's willingness to hear this today.
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1             Sometimes when information or when a

2 petition has issues dealing with signatures, more

3 information might be needed.  This is not the type of

4 situation where a petition may be fatally flawed when

5 initially submitted.  For example, if it had less

6 signatures than required, or if the office wasn't

7 filled out that the person was running for.  This is

8 a situation where, whether he is on the ballot or

9 not, comes down to interpretations of signatures;

10 signatures matching what's on file.

11             And a signature sample at the Board's

12 office is a good place to start the analysis whether

13 a voter was actually the one that signed the

14 petition, but we would advocate that that shouldn't

15 be the end of the analysis.

16             Sometimes people have different versions

17 or variations of how they sign their names on

18 documents or even how they write their names.

19 Sometimes I've found petition signers will try to

20 write more legibly because they want to assist the

21 Board in their identifying who the person was.

22             And even the most-diligent petition

23 signer is not provided with any direction on the

24 Secretary of State's prescribed Form 3-T.  There's

25 really no instructions about how a person must sign
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1 or write their name.  The only real instruction is

2 that the person should print their signature in ink

3 and that -- I'm sorry -- the signature should be in

4 ink and that it should only be for more than one --

5 cannot be more than one county on the same petition.

6             So when Mr. Schreiner filed a petition to

7 run for the School Board where 300 was required, we

8 would agree with the facts as Mr. Mackey presented

9 them to you.  He had a cushion of well over 100 extra

10 to be safe.

11             And when he found out that his petition

12 would not be certified to be a candidate on the

13 ballot, the reason I want him to testify today is

14 because he personally went around and spent the whole

15 weekend and visited 30 to 40 homes.

16             He ended up getting 22 people to sign

17 affidavits.  When he presented affidavits to them,

18 they had the actual part-petition attached and the

19 person had an opportunity to look at it again and

20 verify that they were registered voters, they did

21 live at the address stated, that it was them that

22 signed the petition.

23             So these affidavits that he provided with

24 his request are sworn affidavits, they're notarized,

25 so they are testimony that is in written form that
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1 we're presenting to you today, and we would ask the

2 Board to consider this evidence.

3             Each person on their petition verified

4 that they resided at the address, that they're a

5 qualified elector, that they could vote for the Board

6 member election in the General Election coming up in

7 November.  They were, in fact, presented with

8 Mr. Schreiner's petition when they initially signed

9 it.  They identified the petition and their signature

10 and they stated that they intended it to be their

11 legal mark for purposes of signing the petition.

12             So in the absence of any more persuasive

13 evidence today that would refute these signers'

14 affidavits, this is the best evidence that these 20

15 signatures are valid.

16             Mr. Leonard provided some new information

17 about the final two affidavits from the BMV, which we

18 didn't know what their position would be.  But

19 these -- there were two additional affidavits where

20 they felt they properly changed their voter

21 registration address at the BMV.  We would just ask

22 you to review those affidavits as well.

23             At the end of the day there's no

24 allegation or evidence of fraud, no allegations of

25 fraud.  With the sworn, notarized affidavits, the
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1 Board now should have confidence that there's no

2 question that these are the people who signed the

3 petition and each attested to the legitimacy of their

4 signature.

5             With the additional 20 or 22 signatures,

6 Mr. Schreiner has in excess of 300 signatures, as 290

7 have already been deemed valid.

8             Additionally, allowing Mr. Schreiner on

9 the ballot accomplishes what courts have asked boards

10 to do:  To liberally construe election laws to give

11 candidates access to the ballot, and having a more

12 robust ballot and giving voters a field of candidates

13 to choose from.

14             And if I can just take a minute, I just

15 want to say, you know, in my years of practicing,

16 Mr. Schreiner is one of the most fine and decent

17 people I've gotten to know.   He serves on the

18 South-Western City School District currently.  And I

19 just want you to -- I'm not going to take too much

20 time, but he is currently the Vice President of the

21 South-Western City School District which is the fifth

22 largest in the state.

23             He's dedicated his life to public

24 education.  37 years as an educator.  He serves on

25 a -- the Central Ohio Region of the Ohio School
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1 Boards Association.  He's been nominated and awarded

2 Teacher of the Year for the State of Ohio.  He was a

3 candidate for the Space Shuttle Challenger "Teacher

4 in Space Program"  He started the soccer programs at

5 the high schools in the South-Western City School

6 District.

7             So this man has over 40 years of his life

8 he's given to public education.  And more than

9 anything he just wants the opportunity.  You know, if

10 you were to put him on the ballot, that doesn't put

11 him on the Board, that simply gives the voters a

12 choice, another choice in this election, so then he

13 would have to make his case to the voters to be on

14 the School Board.

15             That's my opening.  And unless there's

16 questions for me, I'd like to ask Mr. Schreiner --

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Let's see if there are

18 any questions first, Corey.

19             MR. COLOMBO:  Okay.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Any questions?

21             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I think we got it.

22             MR. COLOMBO:  Okay.  If I could then, at

23 this point, if there are no questions, I'd like

24 Mr. Schreiner just to tell you about the affidavits.

25 And I'm not sure --
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Sounds reasonable.

2             MR. COLOMBO:  And I'm not sure where

3 you'd like him.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Why don't you come up

5 and state your name and address again for the record.

6 I don't know if you got that -- I don't think you got

7 that yet.

8             MR. SCHREINER:  Lee Schreiner.  4728

9 Clayburn Drive East, Grove City, 43123.

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Thank you.

11             Please proceed.

12             MR. COLOMBO:  One procedural matter.

13 Does everyone have copies of the affidavits that were

14 attached?  Because I did bring extras if they're

15 needed.

16                         - - -

17                     LEE SCHREINER

18 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was

19 examined and testified as follows:

20                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

21 By Mr. Colombo:

22        Q.   Mr. Schreiner, you told the Board your

23 name.  Could you just spell it for them as well?

24        A.   Sure.  It's S-C-H-R-E-I-N-E-R.  I taught

25 elementary school so I usually said, "'I' before 'E'
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1 except after Lee."

2             (Laughter all around.)

3             MEMBER MARINELLO:  That's a good one.

4        Q.   What's your home address?

5        A.   4728 Clayburn Drive East, Grove City,

6 43123.

7        Q.   Was I correct stating that you're

8 currently a member of the South-Western City School

9 District?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   And when you first got on the Board, were

12 you appointed or elected?

13        A.   I was appointed.  I taught 36 years, was

14 called back for the 37th.  The teacher that was

15 prepared and groomed for my job ended up having

16 cancer, so I returned an additional year.  And then

17 immediately after resigning at the end of that year,

18 one of our Board members retired -- or, actually,

19 resigned and moved to Florida.  I was appointed at

20 that point.  So later that year I ran for office for

21 the first time.

22        Q.   And were you elected when you ran for the

23 School Board?

24        A.   I was.

25        Q.   Did you circulate some of the -- what
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1 Mr. Mackey of the Board said were 24 part-petitions?

2        A.   Yes.  I believe 17 of them were mine --

3        Q.   Okay.

4        A.   -- that I circulated.

5        Q.   And did you personally file your

6 nominating petition with the Board of Elections?

7        A.   Yes, I did.

8        Q.   Did you come to learn that your

9 nominating petition was not going to be certified by

10 the Board?

11        A.   I did.

12        Q.   When that happened, did you have the

13 opportunity to look at some of the names of signers

14 that weren't validated?

15        A.   Yes, I did.

16        Q.   And of those signers, did you visit some

17 of them at their home addresses?

18        A.   Yes, I did.  For the affidavits, because

19 I knew that they were residents of our district and

20 registered voters.

21        Q.   And some of them you might have been

22 personally familiar with or knew who they were?

23        A.   I was.

24        Q.   And you submitted, to the Board, 22

25 affidavits for their consideration.  Did you visit
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1 more homes than those 22?

2        A.   Yes.  I think we shot for 32 that we knew

3 of, but some of those were five trips.  We -- our

4 school district is 148 square miles.  So I attempted

5 to get representation from all of our school

6 district, so I had to travel quite a bit to get that.

7        Q.   When you met with these individuals did

8 you present them with an affidavit?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Okay.  And if I could, let me just -- if

11 you could just take a minute to look at that.

12        A.   These are examples of the affidavits that

13 we delivered personally and had them -- had them

14 notarized after they signed.

15        Q.   Okay.  And I showed you this prior to the

16 hearing, correct, this packet right here?

17        A.   Correct.

18        Q.   Do you know, are these the same affidavit

19 copies that were submitted to the Board in your

20 Reconsideration Request?

21        A.   They were.

22        Q.   Okay.  So you are familiar with each of

23 these 22 affidavits?

24        A.   I am.

25        Q.   And did you personally witness each of
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1 these signers sign the affidavits?

2        A.   I did, which I felt was very important to

3 do.

4             MR. COLOMBO:  Of these affidavits, I

5 would ask, just this would be a hearing exhibit

6 today, it's my only exhibit I intend to submit, it

7 would be Hearing Exhibit 1, the 22 affidavits that

8 were also part of the Reconsideration.

9        Q.   Now, when you went to visit these 22

10 individuals, what was their response when you told

11 them why you were there?

12        A.   Well, it was basically "Did I do

13 something wrong?"

14             "Hi.  Welcome to my house.  What are you

15 doing here?  I just saw you, you know, two weeks ago

16 or whatever."

17        Q.   Okay.

18        A.   So it was a surprise.

19        Q.   Okay.  And this affidavit was already

20 prepared prior to meeting them; is that correct?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Okay.  With each affidavit that you

23 showed to a petition signer, did they have the

24 opportunity to read the statements?

25        A.   They did, and also check their signature.
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1        Q.   Okay.

2        A.   They checked everything that was

3 attached.

4        Q.   Did each of the 22 individuals express

5 that they did, in fact, sign your petition initially?

6        A.   They did.

7        Q.   Did each of the 22 you met with agree to

8 sign the affidavit?

9        A.   They did.

10        Q.   Did you have a notary accompany you when

11 you visited each house?

12        A.   Yes, I did.  The same person was kind

13 enough to go with me all weekend, yes.

14        Q.   And what's that individual's name?

15        A.   Jeffrey Buskirk.

16        Q.   Did you observe the notary, Jeffrey

17 Buskirk, notarize each of the affidavits?

18        A.   I did.

19        Q.   Did each of the 22 individuals sign these

20 affidavits in your presence?

21        A.   They did.

22        Q.   To your knowledge are each of these 22

23 individuals registered voters in the school district?

24        A.   Yes.

25        Q.   Okay.  I just still want to ask you
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1 briefly about the two, Dan Boland and Clinton Rardon.

2 Am I saying those names correctly?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   And are you personally familiar with them

5 on a more personal level?

6        A.   Those two particular people are

7 principals at two of our schools, and at one of our

8 functions, leaving, they were kind enough to sign my

9 petition.  And so they were very -- they both

10 recently moved in together.  So at the same time they

11 were getting their new address on their driver's

12 license, they did whatever they needed to do to

13 register and change their voting address.  So they

14 attested to that and they were upset that theirs

15 didn't count afterwards.

16        Q.   And those two are different than the

17 other 20 that are more of a printed signature

18 situation?

19        A.   Right.  Those two were separate.

20        Q.   Okay.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Corey, does that

22 establish your record pretty well?

23             MR. COLOMBO:  Yeah.  So -- yeah.  I was

24 at the end of my list, so.  I was just going to ask

25 him does he desire to be on the ballot.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

2             THE WITNESS:  Oh, I do or I wouldn't be

3 here.

4             (Laughter all around.)

5             MR. COLOMBO:  Okay.  Board member

6 Preisse, with that, I don't intend to make a closing

7 statement.  I just would incorporate what I said in

8 my opening statement.  And I really appreciate the

9 Board's time to hear this matter.

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Thank you, both.

11             Please, unless there's questions, we'll

12 let them sit, but we'll know where you're going to

13 be.

14             MR. COLOMBO:  Yup, I'll be right there.

15 Is it okay if I present this packet to the court

16 reporter?

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Sure.

18             MR. COLOMBO:  Okay.

19             (SCHREINER EXHIBIT 1 MARKED FOR

20 IDENTIFICATION.)

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Does this Counsel have

22 any counsel?  I was wondering if our Counsel had

23 anything to add.  You don't have to.

24             MR. LECKLIDER:  I don't know whether you

25 know, but you weren't required to conduct this
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1 hearing.  There's no requirement under Chapter 35 in

2 the case law.

3             Having said that, the Ohio Supreme Court

4 has acknowledged that the Board has the discretion to

5 conduct these hearings and so has not declared that

6 they are prohibited.

7             Insofar as you have granted the hearing

8 to the individual seeking reconsideration here, what

9 you have conducted, in essence, is a quasi-judicial

10 hearing.  And your obligation, under those

11 circumstances, is to act as a trier of fact, consider

12 the testimony and any documentary evidence that's

13 submitted, in addition to making any credibility

14 determinations that may be warranted in your view in

15 arriving at a final conclusion.

16             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Thank you.

17             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.  Well, if we're

18 ready for discussion.  I spent some time this weekend

19 looking over what we have in front of us, and I have

20 some observations I'd like to share with my

21 colleagues.

22             First of all, I'm glad that Chairman

23 Preisse made the decision to place this on the

24 Board's docket.  Even though, as Mr. Lecklider points

25 out, we don't have a statutory obligation to provide
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1 a reconsideration for him.  I think that we serve the

2 public interest when we do that in a situation such

3 as this.  So I congratulate the Chairman on that

4 decision.

5             Let's first focus on the 20 printed

6 signature items.  And while I am mindful of the

7 statutory instruction that someone that is a

8 registered voter signing a petition use that person's

9 legal mark for the purposes of signing the petition

10 and that he use the legal mark that he employs in his

11 regular business or legal affairs; I'm also mindful

12 of this Board's experience with the Scott case a few

13 years ago.

14             I had the pleasure of sitting on the

15 Board at that time.  My recollection of the matter

16 was that we had a candidacy petition that came before

17 us where five valid signatures were required.  There

18 were four signatures, cursive signatures, that the

19 Board's staff reported to be valid, and then there

20 was also a printed name.

21             And at that point in a proceeding the

22 only thing the Board staff can do to determine the

23 validity of the signature is to compare that

24 signature to the one that is on record at the Board.

25 The Board's staff correctly reported there was a
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1 discrepancy.

2             Mr. Scott asked for an opportunity to be

3 heard on his disqualification from the ballot.  His

4 Counsel arrived with both the circulator and the

5 person who purportedly placed the name, the fifth

6 name on the petition.

7             We heard evidence, and the majority of

8 the Board was convinced that the person who said "I

9 put something on that petition" was in fact that

10 person.  But it also was admitted during the

11 proceeding that this was not the legal mark; that is,

12 the cursive signature that this person usually used

13 in conducting her business affairs.  Taking note of

14 that, we held the fifth purported signature to be

15 invalid.  It was a printed name; not a signature.

16             That decision then was reviewed by the

17 Franklin County Court of Appeals which held, in a

18 2-to-1 decision, that the Board had correctly

19 interpreted the statute.  The Board had focused on

20 the requirement that there be the legal mark, in this

21 instance the cursive signature that the person

22 ordinarily used in her business affairs.

23             That matter was reviewed by the Ohio

24 Supreme Court, and the Ohio Supreme Court focused

25 solely on the question as to whether the person who
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1 purportedly made the fifth signature on the petition

2 was who she said she was; that is, that we have the

3 right person coming before us saying yes, I'm the one

4 who wrote on that fifth line.

5             With that being the instruction from the

6 Supreme Court, I think that the legal mark

7 requirement has sort of been written out of the law.

8 And so long as we are convinced that the person who

9 purportedly signed did sign, then that settles the

10 matter.

11             And in my estimation we now have 20

12 believable affidavits from those who placed printed

13 signatures on Mr. Schreiner's petition, saying yeah,

14 I'm the one who printed my name on the petition.  And

15 it looks to me, under the Supreme Court's instruction

16 in the Scott case, that must be enough for us.

17             So my conclusion is that we now have a

18 petition in front of us that has 310 valid signatures

19 and, for that reason, Mr. Schreiner should be

20 qualified for the ballot.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Well said.

22             Thoughts from the left side of the table?

23 Well, unless you're in the audience then it's the

24 right side.

25             MEMBER SEXTON:  I would agree.  I mean
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1 we've got precedence from the Supreme Court.  I went

2 through all 20 of these signed affidavits, and given

3 their validity, would give Mr. Schreiner 310 valid

4 signatures to be on the ballot.

5             MEMBER MARINELLO:  I agree.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I don't know that we

7 need further instruction or commentary.

8             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  We would just

9 need a motion to that effect.

10             MEMBER SEXTON:  I'll make the motion if

11 you choose, Mr. Chairman.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Well, you can if you

13 wish to.  It's before you.

14             MEMBER SEXTON:  All right.  After

15 considering all the evidence and arguments presented

16 regarding the validity of signatures previously ruled

17 invalid by the Board of Elections, I move that Lee

18 Schreiner has demonstrated that a sufficient number

19 of signatures were filed and, therefore, the name of

20 Lee Schreiner is certified to the November 7th, 2017

21 ballot as a candidate for the Board Member of the

22 South-Western City School District.

23             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Is there a

24 second?

25             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Second.
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All those in

2 favor, signify by saying -- you want a --

3             MR. LECKLIDER:  Roll call.

4             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  -- roll call.

5             All right.  Kim Marinello.

6             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Yes.

7             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Michael Sexton.

8             MEMBER SEXTON:  Yes.

9             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Doug Preisse.

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yes.

11             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  And Brad Sinnott.

12             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yes.

13             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Motion carries.

14             Thank you, legal counsel, for setting me

15 straight there.

16             I think we'll follow the same procedure

17 with David Donofrio.  Do you want to --

18             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  You're welcome to

19 stay, but maybe you don't need to or want to, but

20 thank you for coming.

21             MR. COLOMBO:  Thank you.

22             MR. SCHREINER:  Thank you very much.

23             MR. MACKEY:  Similarly, we reviewed

24 Mr. Donofrio's petition.  We found 293 valid

25 signatures out of 370 presented on the 20
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1 part-petitions.  That left 77 invalid and a deficit

2 of 7 signatures.  Do you want the breakdown on his as

3 well?

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Please.

5             MR. MACKEY:  Duplicate voter, 3.  No

6 address, 1.  Not genuine, 1.  Not registered, 4.  Not

7 registered at address, which again means either we

8 looked at that address, did not find a signature that

9 matched, or found the voter had a different address,

10 that was 43.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  43?

12             MR. MACKEY:  43 on that not registered at

13 address.  9 out of district.  And then 16 in the

14 printed signature category.

15             MEMBER SEXTON:  You said 9 out of

16 district?

17             MR. MACKEY:  9 out of district.

18             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  You said 16 were

19 listed as printed?

20             MR. MACKEY:  16 printed.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What did you say was

22 the Board's initial validation number?.

23             MR. MACKEY:  293.  A deficit of 7.

24             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  I think we may have

25 mentioned at the last meeting that even the initial
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1 review was short of that, and that Mr. Mackey went

2 through the petitions an additional time and was able

3 to identify more signatures that got Mr. Donofrio's

4 petitions to that 293 signature mark.

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  And so, who is here on

6 the Donofrio team?

7             MR. DONOFRIO:  Myself.

8             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

9             MR. DONOFRIO:  Hi.

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Will you state your

11 name and address for our record, please?

12             MR. DONOFRIO:  Yes, sir.  David Thomas

13 Donofrio, 298 Carilla Lane, Columbus, Ohio 43228.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Please tell us.

15             MR. DONOFRIO:  Thank you.

16                         - - -

17                   DAVID T. DONOFRIO

18 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was

19 examined and testified as follows:

20                    DIRECT TESTIMONY

21             MR. DONOFRIO:  I did want to submit some

22 updated information to you.  You have already

23 received, in my initial request for the

24 Reconsideration Hearing, 12 notarized affidavits.

25 The updated version of the paper here simply
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1 corresponds to those affidavits as exhibits to the

2 respective lines on the part-petitions.

3             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Mr. Donofrio --

4             MR. DONOFRIO:  Yes.

5             MEMBER SINNOTT:  -- hold on a second

6 while we catch up with you.

7             MR. DONOFRIO:  Sure.

8             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Thank you.

9             MR. DONOFRIO:  Okay.  So I have 12 of

10 those.  I additionally, in the Request for

11 Reconsideration Hearing letter, listed an additional

12 17 people who are correctly identified as registered

13 voters.

14             Similarly to Mr. Schreiner, when I drove

15 around to these total of 29 houses, not everyone was

16 home at the time.  12 of them were and those are the

17 ones that are the affidavits presented there which

18 were signed by the voter and witnessed by the notary

19 as well as myself in every instance.

20             The additional 17 on here -- and again,

21 I've highlighted these so that you can correspond

22 with petition numbers and line numbers -- are also

23 all registered voters.  They had different reasons

24 for some of them of why they were or were not deemed

25 acceptable at certification.
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1             So I would like to submit to you an

2 updated Request for Reconsideration Hearing letter

3 that I initially submitted on August 27, 2017;

4 corresponding copies of the 12 affidavits; as well as

5 the corresponding copies of all of the

6 part-petitions, so that it makes it easier for you to

7 make any comparisons if you would like to.  So if you

8 don't mind, I would like to submit those items to

9 you.

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I think that's fine.

11 That would be the only copy we have before us.  It

12 may be sufficient for the immediate purposes of the

13 Board.

14             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  I will point out for

15 the Board, if you look at the initial Request for

16 Reconsideration, in the section that has the 12

17 signatures for which affidavits are included, that 8

18 of those 12 are specifically disqualified for either

19 not genuine or a printed signature.

20             MR. DONOFRIO:  That's correct.  I did

21 want to just include a bit of supplementary

22 information on these, because to me it's very

23 important to remember that these are people.  I don't

24 just view them as voters or signatories; these are

25 people.
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1             And so, part of this, as was mentioned

2 with Mr. Schreiner's legal counsel, was trying to dig

3 a little bit deeper into their stories.

4             And so, two of these in particular are

5 women who had gotten married since they registered to

6 vote.  They did both have signed signatures in

7 cursive, but their last names appear differently than

8 was on the original voter roll.  They both had

9 included in their affidavit the original name, which

10 is in the voter roll, as well as the married name.

11             The third of my people that I mentioned

12 on here, he goes by his middle name, "Joe," because

13 his first name is Augustine.  And so he signs his

14 name for legal purposes as "Joe."

15             And so, those are just a few examples

16 that I wanted to point out to you that just kind of,

17 to me, hit home the matter of needing to review the

18 entire case, needing to review the entire story of a

19 person in coming to a determination of validity of

20 these signatures.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is that about what you

22 have to say?

23             Any questions for Mr. Donofrio or any

24 observations from anyone here, including Counsel?

25             MR. LECKLIDER:  My only advice would be
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1 that if Mr. Donofrio wants to submit his exhibits,

2 that you simply mark those Donofrio Exhibit 1.

3             MR. DONOFRIO:  Thank you.  I would like

4 to.

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

6             (DONOFRIO EXHIBIT 1 MARKED FOR

7 IDENTIFICATION.)

8             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  I will ask, I guess,

9 Mr. Mackey or Mr. Donofrio, did we receive the

10 original of all of the affidavits?

11             MR. MACKEY:  Yes.

12             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Okay.  All right.  I

13 just ask because all I've seen so far have been

14 copies.

15             MR. MACKEY:  I have them here.

16             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  That we have them here

17 at the Board of Elections.  Thank you.

18             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Well, if we're ready for

19 discussion, I would propose that we address the 8

20 affidavits that speak to the printed name.  And for

21 the reasons that we revised our position on

22 Mr. Schreiner's candidacy, it's looks as though if we

23 accept the 8 printed signature affidavits, we now

24 have a candidate with 301 valid signatures, which

25 would qualify him for the ballot in that school
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1 district.

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  It strikes me as an

3 efficient approach.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I can't see any

5 difference between the printed signature issue in

6 these two different matters.

7             MEMBER MARINELLO:  I don't see any

8 difference either.

9             MEMBER SEXTON:  I would agree.  The only

10 thing I'm seeing is -- I'm seeing -- my count's off,

11 but I'm seeing 7 of your affidavits that are printed

12 signatures?

13             MR. DONOFRIO:  I would need to -- let me

14 just review here.

15             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Holcomb's signature is

16 listed as not genuine.

17             MEMBER SEXTON:  Which one?

18             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  The first bullet point

19 on page 2 of his Request for Reconsideration, William

20 Holcomb.

21             MEMBER SEXTON:  Okay.  It's not genuine.

22             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Not genuine.

23             MEMBER SEXTON:  But it's not listed as a

24 printed.

25             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Correct, but still you
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1 have a -- as Member Sinnott had mentioned is the fact

2 that the individual is, by affidavit, stating that is

3 my signature, and that's sufficient similar to the

4 printed situation.

5             MEMBER SEXTON:  So that would get us to 8

6 and a total of 301.

7             MEMBER SINNOTT:  301.

8             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Well, that takes care

9 of that.

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yeah.

11             MEMBER MARINELLO:  After considering all

12 the evidence and arguments presented regarding the

13 validity of signatures previously ruled invalid by

14 the Board of Elections, I move that David Donofrio

15 has demonstrated that a sufficient number of

16 signatures were filed and, therefore, the name of

17 David Donofrio is certified to the November 7th, 2017

18 ballot as a candidate for the Board Member of the

19 South-Western City School District.

20             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Is there a

21 second?

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Second.

23             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  We'll take roll

24 call.  Kim Marinello.

25             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Yes.
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Mike Sexton.

2             MEMBER SEXTON:  Yes.

3             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Doug Preisse.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yes.

5             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  And Brad Sinnott.

6             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yes.

7             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Motion carries.

8             MR. DONOFRIO:  Thank you very much.

9             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Thank you,

10 Mr. Donofrio.

11             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Our next item of

12 business is we had a couple folks that -- well, I

13 guess 6, right, Jeff?

14             MR. MACKEY:  6.

15             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  That wanted to be

16 certified as write-in candidates.

17             MR. MACKEY:  Following the

18 August 21st meeting, we received 6 additional

19 declarations of intent to be write-in candidates,

20 timely filed, found by staff to be valid and

21 sufficient.  We have their names and offices listed

22 there in front of you.

23             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is that one of our

24 exhibits?  Here it is, Exhibit A.

25             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I move that the Board
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1 certify the candidates listed on Exhibit A as valid

2 write-in candidates for the offices they are seeking

3 on the November 7th, 2017 General Election ballot.

4             MEMBER SEXTON:  Second.

5             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All those in

6 favor, signify by saying aye.

7             (Thereupon, all members voted

8 affirmatively.)

9             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All opposed, same

10 sign.

11             (No response.)

12             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Motion carries.

13             There were a couple candidate withdrawals

14             MR. MACKEY:  We received withdrawals from

15 Courtney Heppner, candidate for Dublin Board of

16 Education, and Jeannie Hoffman, candidate for

17 Gahanna-Jefferson Board of Education.  They indicated

18 they wished their names to be removed from the

19 ballot.  They were received prior to the deadline for

20 having their name removed from the ballot.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

22             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Any discussion on

23 that?

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I don't see why we

25 need it.
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  I look for a

2 motion on that.

3             MEMBER SEXTON:  I move that the Board

4 accept the requests of Courtney Falato Heppner to

5 withdraw as a candidate for the Dublin City School

6 Board, and Jeannie Hoffman to withdraw as a candidate

7 for Gahanna-Jefferson Central School District Board

8 of Education, and that their names not appear on the

9 November 7th, 2017 General Election ballot.

10             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Is there a

11 second?

12             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

13             MEMBER SINNOTT:  There is.

14             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All those in

15 favor, signify by saying aye.

16             (Thereupon, all members voted

17 affirmatively.)

18             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All opposed, same

19 sign.

20             (No response.)

21             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Motion carries.

22             Our next item of business is a referendum

23 withdrawal.  I think you'll remember that the Minerva

24 Park folks filed two referendums, and I think we

25 reached out to them, to both groups, to say it might
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1 be advantageous for one of the groups to withdraw a

2 referendum so as not to confuse the voters.

3             MR. MACKEY:  That did occur in a fashion

4 timely to have it removed from the ballot, so only

5 one of their referendum issues will appear.

6             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Good.  I move that the

7 Board accept the request of petitioners to withdraw a

8 referendum for Minerva Park and that the referendum

9 shall not appear on the November 7th, 2017 General

10 Election ballot.

11             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Is there a

12 second?

13             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Second.

14             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All those in

15 favor, signify by saying aye.

16             (Thereupon, all members voted

17 affirmatively.)

18             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All opposed.

19             (No response.)

20             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Motion carries.

21             The Secretary of State requires that we

22 do a ballot -- paper ballot allocation in each of our

23 precincts, as well as a voting machine allocation,

24 and now we are doing an electronic pollbook

25 allocation as well.
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1             So if Carolyn would come up.  She's

2 flying with one wing today.  Tell us about the paper

3 ballot allocation first.

4             MS. GORUP:  For the paper ballot

5 allocations we look at 2013 and 2015 for the previous

6 high ballot -- provisional ballots in previous

7 elections to base our number on; we do 5 more.  On

8 the sheets you'll see a number of precincts, precinct

9 splits, highlighted.  We don't -- either they're a

10 new precinct or we did not have previous -- those

11 splits individual in those elections.

12             I have not received the consolidation of

13 precincts from Operations yet.  So, down the road, we

14 will be consolidating.  As an example, Columbus 1-B

15 will probably end up being one ballot style and we

16 will have one pad of 25 instead of three pads of 25.

17 But, at this point in time, we don't have enough

18 information to make that assumption.

19             So attached you have Exhibit B that shows

20 what the worst-case scenario would be for provisional

21 ballots.

22             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Carolyn, is it

23 fair to say that we will have that number by our

24 October meeting?

25             MS. GORUP:  Yes.
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  And then --

2             MS. GORUP:  We better have.

3             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Yeah.  And then

4 we'll do this again, as we're required to do it twice

5 by the Secretary of State's office.

6             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I move that the Board

7 adopt the paper ballot allocation formula in

8 Exhibit B compiled by the Board's staff for the

9 November 7th, 2017 General Election.

10             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

11             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All those in

12 favor, signify by saying aye.

13             (Thereupon, all members voted

14 affirmatively.)

15             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All opposed, same

16 sign.

17             (No response.)

18             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Motion carries.

19             Next is the voting machine and electronic

20 pollbook allocation.

21             MS. GORUP:  We are allocating one machine

22 for every 175 voters in the location and those are

23 listed on this sheet.  And our rule of thumb on

24 pollpads, there's no requirement, but we do a minimum

25 of 3, or 1 for every 900 voters.  With the exception
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1 of the Ohio Union which would have had 10 pollpads,

2 but we're only going to put 7 considering the turnout

3 expected.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

5             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Any discussion on

6 that?  Any questions for Carolyn?  If not, I'd

7 entertain a motion.

8             MEMBER SEXTON:  Mr. Chairman, I move that

9 the Board adopt the voting machine allocation formula

10 in Exhibit C compiled by the Board staff for the

11 November 7th, 2017 General Election.

12             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Is there a

13 second?

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I second, with the

15 question, what does unassigned machine 88 mean?

16 Those are just back here?

17             MS. GORUP:  That means we have an

18 additional number of machines that we aren't

19 assigning right now, which would be here to use, to

20 replace machines that would break down; or, if it was

21 determined that some area was going to have an

22 extremely high turnout that we didn't anticipate at

23 this time, we could assign those machines.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

25             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  And you seconded



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

48

1 that?

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I did.

3             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All those in

4 favor, signify by saying aye.

5             (Thereupon, all members voted

6 affirmatively.)

7             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All opposed, same

8 sign.

9             (No response.)

10             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Motion carries.

11             Exhibit D is an employee time accounting

12 procedure that we sent to the Board.  I'll let the

13 Director --

14             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  If the Board members

15 recall, at a previous meeting of the Board the issue

16 was discussed of the desire to have a policy that

17 relates to the time clocks, time accounting system

18 that we have at the Board of Elections.

19             Each employee is issued an ID card and

20 they are to use that ID card at terminals that are

21 designed for recognition of that ID card relating to

22 that employee.  It takes their picture of them as

23 they're checking in and accounting for their time.

24             The policy -- there was no County --

25 Board of Elections policy relating to the requirement
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1 to utilize that ID card and that -- that time

2 accounting system.  And as the Board presented at a

3 previous meeting, we ought to put together a policy

4 that would address, make it a requirement that

5 employees utilize their ID card in the time

6 accounting system.

7             As we started to develop that, one of the

8 issues that came about was accounting for lunch,

9 because we do have employees that either don't leave

10 the premises for lunch and because they don't leave

11 the premises they don't clock out.

12             So we did feel the need to, as part of

13 the policy, to put a requirement in that our

14 employees do take time out for lunch and, if they

15 don't, they're still going to be accounting for a

16 half-hour of lunch.  So that if they're here for 8

17 hours and they don't clock out for lunch, they're

18 still accounting -- we still have to account for a

19 half-hour of lunch.  So I assume our employees will

20 quickly pick up that they need to clock out and take

21 time away for lunch.

22             The County Commissioners' policy as it

23 relates to hours of work specifies that, you know,

24 the workday is 8:00 to 5:00, and it encourages

25 employees to take time for lunch and get away from
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1 their workstation.

2             And that's what we want to do with this

3 time accounting process is that they're here, we're

4 accounting for their time, but we're also wanting

5 them to take time away from their -- from their work

6 area and take a break, not eating lunch at their

7 desk, or we have individuals who might eat in the

8 break room but not necessarily clock out on the clock

9 and that needs to be properly accounted for as well.

10             So, again, the time accounting procedure

11 would have it that the individual must check in, they

12 must check in in such a way that the computer system

13 recognizes and takes a photograph of them and that

14 they can't have somebody else checking in for them.

15             So this is documenting the steps that

16 have been largely undertaken anyways, but with the

17 exception of the lunch policy -- lunch requirement.

18             MEMBER SINNOTT:  As a practical matter,

19 for some years now, at least during your tenure here,

20 all of the Board staff has used the electronic

21 check-in system, right?

22             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Since I've been here

23 that's been my understanding.

24             MEMBER SINNOTT:  The Director, Deputy

25 Director, and everybody else?
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Yes.

2             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Exactly.

3             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.  How is it that

4 the County Commissioners' policy deals with the

5 employee who truly has worked through her lunch hour?

6 When I was reviewing this, that was one of the things

7 that troubled me, and I'd invite Tim to weigh in

8 because he does employment law.  I get that we want

9 employees to take at least a half-hour for lunch.

10             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Uh-huh.

11             MEMBER SINNOTT:  And it looks as though

12 we're going to presume under this policy that if

13 you've stayed at work the whole time, you must have

14 taken a half-hour for lunch.

15             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Right.

16             MEMBER SINNOTT:  But I'm going to guess

17 there are probably times when employees actually work

18 during their lunch hour.  And I don't know, Tim, that

19 we're at liberty not to pay an employee for time

20 actually worked.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  It additionally

22 strikes me, you know, the same document here is

23 encouraging, as we are, County employees to take a

24 lunch break, but it also says of course you may have

25 to work overtime from time to time.  And I'm sure we
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1 have a ramp-up approaching elections.

2             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Right.

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  People are eating

4 quickly inside or not at all.

5             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Well, that again is

6 encouraging our folks to take time away.  So if

7 you're working a 10-hour day or an 11-hour day, still

8 we want to encourage our folks to take time away

9 from -- take a break from the workload.

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Indeed I understand

11 that, but it seems the way we're coming out on this

12 is we're going to dock your time by 30 minutes on the

13 presumption that you took a lunch whether we know

14 that to be true or not; and that, I think, may be

15 troubling.  Tim, are you troubled by that?

16             MR. LECKLIDER:  Well, I guess I would

17 like to ask the Director, I'm assuming this was

18 formulated by Franklin County HR?

19             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Right, our HR folks.

20             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Cate Graessle.

21             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Is everyone reading this

22 differently than I am?  "Whether or not an employee

23 leaves the building, employees must take a minimum of

24 one-half hour...lunch break.  Employees not clocking

25 out for lunch during the entire work day will have a
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1 30-minute lunch period deducted from their total

2 hours for the day."

3             If the employee has actually worked all

4 of that time, though, how are we going to not

5 recognize that for 30 minutes out of the day the

6 employee was working for us now without compensation?

7             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  I mean --

8             MR. LECKLIDER:  It's a fair question.  I

9 think under the circumstances --

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I'm wondering --

11             MR. LECKLIDER:  -- perhaps we should have

12 a consultation with HR, Franklin County HR.

13             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  If there's still more

14 questions on it, this is not something we have to

15 address today.  It is something that we do need to

16 address.

17             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I'm fully supportive of

18 the policy.  I think it's a great idea, but --

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  This is great

20 progress, but I lean with Brad.  Not being the expert

21 he is, that was troubling, too, and how do you manage

22 it.  The other thing is do we ever have people

23 bunched up at this thing?  Does it work well,

24 quickly?

25             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  It works very



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

54

1 well.

2             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Exactly, yeah.

3             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  It works very

4 well.

5             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  In terms of people

6 getting --

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Signed in, signed out.

8             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Oh, no, that's --

9 yeah, that's --

10             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  I've never seen a

11 backup.  Now, I suppose that at the end of a training

12 or something, when they all come out of the room at

13 the same time --

14             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Yeah, there's a bit of

15 a line.

16             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  But even at

17 that --

18             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  So we're dealing with

19 a maximum of 40 people.

20             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Well, no, when we have

21 trainers in here, you could have a bunch of people

22 lining up at the very end of a training session to

23 clock out.

24             MR. MACKEY:  We have three terminals now,

25 so it's not just one.  There's one here, one over in
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1 the petition section, and one in the warehouse.

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I see.

3             MEMBER SINNOTT:  This really has been the

4 de facto policy of the Board going back at least

5 three years, though, is how long you have been

6 dealing with this.  I think it goes back to '14.

7             And one other thing.  Does it make sense,

8 early on in the policy, to say that this is to be

9 done each day an employee works at the Board office?

10 Sort of -- I think that we all have that

11 understanding, but I don't know that we say that

12 anywhere.

13             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Meaning they might be

14 working, but not here?

15             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Well, we don't say we're

16 expecting you to do this each day you're working at

17 the Board's office.

18             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Okay.

19             MEMBER SINNOTT:  So what I'd suggest is

20 at the end of the first sentence of the second

21 paragraph after the word "system" we insert "each day

22 they work at the Board's office."

23             There will be times when you're doing

24 Board work and you may be at a conference in New

25 York, but if you're working any part of the day at
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1 the Board office this is the procedure you're

2 supposed to observe.

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yeah, because we also

4 have people that run around the county.

5             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yeah, that's true too.

6 Yes.  Well, with that -- by the way, please look at

7 the last sentence of the second-to-last paragraph.  I

8 know what you're trying to say.  I don't think the --

9             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  The "Alternative"

10 line?

11             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yeah.  "Alternative,

12 more acceptable descriptions would be...." .

13             Wouldn't that be better maybe

14 "Alternatively, a more-acceptable description would

15 be...."

16             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  "Alternatively."

17             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.

18             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Again, the idea was

19 just to remind folks that they do need to, you know,

20 instead of trying to put shorthands in that box for

21 explaining why they're out on the clock, that they

22 need to be more descriptive about it.

23             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I get it.  I thought it

24 was a helpful description; they just need to say it

25 better.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I think the whole

2 thing is progress, but I think we're not -- we're

3 going to have some additional discussion and

4 tweaking.

5             MR. LECKLIDER:  Mr. Chairman, if I may,

6 it just occurred to me as I'm looking at this policy

7 and your question posed earlier with respect to the

8 employees not clocking out for lunch during the

9 entire workday, I mean not being the drafter of this

10 document, it occurs to me that perhaps the drafter

11 was contemplating a scenario where it was merely an

12 oversight, you know, that the individual, that they

13 ate at their desk, took a full hour -- I'm sorry --

14 half-hour eating at their desk and didn't make it to

15 one of the terminals to adjust their time to account

16 for that half-hour.  But it's something . . .

17             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I think that's right,

18 but I think we need to deal with the possibility that

19 we're going to be refusing to pay somebody for 30

20 minutes of work that she actually did.

21             MR. LECKLIDER:  I guess what I'm saying

22 is I presume, I don't know, that somebody could be

23 not working but eating their lunch at their desk --

24             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yeah, that's right.  I

25 think that's what --
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1             MR. LECKLIDER:  -- or somewhere else in

2 the building.

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  That's probably the

4 presumption.

5             MEMBER SINNOTT:  But that's not what

6 we're saying.

7             MR. LECKLIDER:  Right.

8             MEMBER SINNOTT:  We're saying that no

9 matter what happens we're going to dock you 30

10 minutes for your lunch hour.  And if you have, in

11 fact, worked for us during that time, we ought to pay

12 you for it.

13             MEMBER MARINELLO:  What about leaving 30

14 minutes early saying that's your lunch but you're

15 leaving 30 minutes early?  Are they allowed to do

16 that?  Instead of leaving at 5:00, leave at 4:30, and

17 that's your half-hour.

18             MEMBER SINNOTT:  That presents a flex

19 time issue, doesn't it?

20             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  It does.  I mean

21 we're trying -- that's part of the reason for

22 drafting something is that people have come in at

23 8:00 and regularly leave at 4:00 and claim that they

24 haven't taken a lunch.

25             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  If it was me, I'd come
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1 in at 8:30.

2             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Well, and there's

3 people that come in at 7:00.  I mean, you know, what

4 we're trying to do --

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  How are you guys

6 managing that now?

7             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Well, we're

8 working on a policy to talk about hours of operation,

9 too.  I mean there are exceptions, but the hours here

10 at the Board of Elections are 8:00 to 5:00, and so a

11 half an hour on either side might be acceptable if

12 you come in at 7:30 or you leave at 5:30, but for the

13 most part we need people here from 8:00 to 5:00.  If

14 they're leaving at 4:00, that doesn't help the rest

15 of us.

16             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  And we do have folks,

17 in coordination with their managers --

18             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Right.

19             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  -- who come in because

20 of childcare arrangements or other issues --

21             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Right.

22             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  -- that either come in

23 a little bit later or leave a little bit earlier, but

24 they still work --

25             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  But there ought
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1 to be a reason that is, you know --

2             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Right.

3             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  So we'll be --

4 we'll be adopting those -- writing those up for

5 adoption by the Board as well.  And I guess one of my

6 questions is going forward would you like to view

7 these individually?  I mean there are a number of

8 policies that we're working on -- or at some point?

9 Well, we can talk about it.

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yeah.  Well, I'm glad

11 that you brought this one to our attention because it

12 has been a matter of Board interest going back for a

13 number of years.  I would think, as you revise and

14 alter our body of employment practices and policies,

15 maybe the thing to do is to bring to us a revamped

16 handbook so we can look at them all at once as

17 opposed to --

18             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Okay.

19             MEMBER SINNOTT:  -- reviewing each tweak

20 individually.

21             MEMBER SEXTON:  And I think when

22 you're -- to be fair to the employees -- when you're

23 looking at hours of operation, what it is, you have

24 some of these things in the County here, what are

25 situations for flex time, what are, you know,
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1 alternative work schedules for people that have

2 daycare and schedules for that.  I know we have

3 probably, you know, a comp time policy, overtime, all

4 that.

5             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  Yeah.

6             MEMBER SEXTON:  So I'd be looking at if

7 we can kind of package this all into one so the

8 employee knows when they're expected to be here; when

9 they can be off, when they can't; if they take a

10 lunch, if they don't; you know, all that.

11             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Yeah.  Agreed.

12             DIRECTOR LEONARD:  We can do that.

13             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Sounds good.

14             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Is there any more

15 business to come before the Board?  If not, I would

16 entertain a motion to adjourn.

17             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Move to adjourn.

18             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Is there a

19 second?

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Second.

21             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  All those in

22 favor, signify by saying aye.

23             (Thereupon, all members voted

24 affirmatively.)

25             DEPUTY DIRECTOR PAYNE:  Opposed, same
















































































































































































































































































































































